@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road * Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

Board of Zoning Appeals Agenda

May 28, 2024
City Hall
7:00 p.m.
1. Call to Order
Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance
Open Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting / Swearing in of Witnesses
Guests and Residents

New Business

S A

Agenda ltem 1

9912 Forestglen Drive: Property owner Melissa Day, reqguests to allow for an
accessory structure, 14’ x 40’, to have a setback of 8 from the side property line where
15" is required per Schedule 1511009 (B) of the Montgomery Zoning Code. A second
variance is being requested to allow the structure to have a setback from the principal
building of 4’ where 10" is required per 151.1009(B).

Agenda ltem 2

8821 Weller Road: Property owners Abigail and Lance Busdeker, request to allow for
an accessory parking area to have a setback of 13.2’ from the front property line where
25 is required per Schedule 151.1009 (B) of the Montgomery Zoning Code. A second
variance is being reguested to allow the expansion of the legal non-conforming
driveway, 20°3” x 16°, to have a setback of .2" where 5 is required per Schedule
151.009(R) of the Montgomery Zoning Code.

Agenda ltem 3

9393 Shelly Lane: Applicants Eric Hines and Mike Wentz, potential buyers, are
requesting a variance to allow an addition to provide no on-site parking spaces,
where Schedule 151.3204 and Section 151.3207 of the Montgomery Zoning Code
requires a minimum of 10 spaces in the Outer Old Montgomery District.

7. Other Business
8. Approval of Minutes
9. Adjournment

City of Montgomery Board of Zoning Appeals
10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « montgomeryohio.org « 513-891-2424



&

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road + Montgormery, Ohio 45242 » (513) 891-2424

CITY OF MONTGOMERY
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

Application for Variance: Eric and Melissa Day
9912 Forestglen Drive

May 28, 2024
Staff Report

Applicant: Eric and Melissa Day
9912 Forestglen Drive
Montgomery, Ohio 45242

Property Owner: SAME

Vicinity Map:

Forestglen Dr

Nature of Request:

The applicants are requesting a variance to allow a new detached structure, 14’
x 40’°, to have a side yard setback of 8 where 15’ is the minimum required per
Schedule 151.1009(B) of the Montgomery Zoning Code. A second variance is
being requested to allow the structure to have a setback from the principal
structure of 4’ where 10’ is required per Schedule 151.1009(B).



o

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Reoad = Montgomery, Chio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

Zoning:

The property is zoned ‘A’ Single Family Residential. The properties to the
north, west, and south are also zoned ‘A’ Single Family Residential and are
used as single-family residences.

Findings:

1.

The lot is approximately .459 acres, or 19,994 square feet, which is
slightly less than the 20,000 square foot minimum required for the ‘A’
District. Therefore, the lot is legal non-conforming in lot size.

Schedule 151.1009 of the Montgomery Zoning Code requires accessory
buildings over 200 square feet in size to be a minimum of 15 feet from
the side and rear property lines and setback 10 feet from the principal
building.

The house was built in 1973, and has a side loading, enclosed two car
garage. A portion of the driveway has a O’ setback where 5’ is required.

The applicant is proposing a structure 14’ x 40’ or 560 square feet,
which is near the maximum size permitted of 567 square feet for a
detached structure.

There is a panhandle lot with an existing house directly behind the lot
with an address of 9910 Forestglen Drive. This house has a legal non-
conforming setback of approximately 15°.

ISTGLEN2 Q oo

i
i
-0

B




@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road « Montgomery, Chio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

Variance Considerations:

Section 150.2010 allows the Board of Zoning Appeals to grant dimensional
variances when the applicant can establish a practical difficulty. The City has
established the following criteria for evaluating hardships:

J.

Whether special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar
to the land and/or structure involved?

The lot is legal non-conforming in size, as the lot is 6 square feet less
than what is required in the ‘A’ District. The existing driveway is also
legal non-conforming, as a portion of it has a O’ setback where 5’ is
required. There are no special conditions or circumstances regarding
the existing structure.

The applicants have stated in their application that the existing garage
is smaller than average and there is only 300 square feet of basement

storage area.

Will the property yield a reasonable rate of return if the variance is not
granted?

Staff believes the property will yield a reasonable rate of return without
granting the variances as the existing house has an attached 2 car
garage, and there is ample opportunity to locate an accessory structure
in a different location on the lot.

Is the variance substantial? Is it the minimum necessary?

The variance request is substantial, as the applicant is requesting a 47%
reduction in the side yard setback for a structure over 200 square feet.

The variance from the principal structure is also substantial, as the
applicant is requesting a 60% reduction in the setback.

Will the character of the neighborhood be substantially altered?
Staff is of the opinion that the character of the neighborhood may be

substantially altered by granting the variance, as the reduced side yard
setback will increase the visibility of the large structure from the street.



@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road * Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

In addition, the structure will be significantly closer to the principal
dwelling than is permitted.

However, the applicants are proposing a compatible design with the
main dwelling, including replicating architectural features, using the
same hardie board & batten, and the same roof pitch and shingle color
and detailing.

5. Would this variance adversely affect the delivery of government
services?

Government services would not be affected by granting the variance.

6. Did the owner purchase the property with the knowledge of the zoning
restraint?

The applicants have stated they were not aware of the zoning restraint.
7. Whether special conditions exist as a result of the actions of the owner?

No special conditions exist as a result of the actions of the owner.

8. Whether the owner’s predicament can be feasibly obviated through
some other method?

Staff believes that the applicants have proposed a location to best
utilize the existing driveway placement, work with existing topography,
and maintain a greater separation from 9910 Forestglen Drive.

However, the house does have an existing two car attached garage, and
the same area may allow for a smaller structure, 200 square feet or less,
with a 10’ width.

The applicants included a sketch of having a structure further back in
the rear yard, along with a list of reasons why this location is not
preferred (see drawing 00T1).

9. Would the spirit and intent behind the zoning requirement be observed
and substantial justice done by granting the variance?

The zoning code is clear that accessory structures shall be located a
minimum of 15 feet from the side and rear property lines in the ‘A’



@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road » Montgomery, Ohic 45242 + (513) 891-2424

10.

District; however, Staff does not believe that it is the intent of the
zoning code to inhibit the property owners ability to have an accessory
building on the lot, if its location would not be detrimental to the
surrounding properties and a practical difficulty can be established.
Staff understands the applicants’ intent to locate the structure as far
from 9910 Forestglen Drive, as possible; however, has some concern
that a practical difficulty has not been clearly established.

Would granting the variance confer on the applicant any special
privilege that is denied to other properties in this district?

Dimensional variances for accessory structures on residential lots have
been granted to lots with special conditions that are peculiar to the land
and granting the variance does not grant any special exception in
regard to use. The following accessory structure variances have been
previously granted:

¢ 10310 Gentlewind Drive was granted a 7’ variance from the rear
and side yard setbacks for the construction of a shed in August of
2008.

e 14044 Bobwhite Court was granted a variance of 1.6’ into the side
yard setback for an accessory structure in May of 2007.

¢ 10396 Southwind Drive was granted a variance of 6’ into the side
yard setback and 12’ into the rear yard setback for a shed.

¢ 9119 E. Kemper Road was granted a side yard setback variance of
17’ for a 280 square foot detached garage in September of 2010.

e 8924 E. Kemper Road was granted variance to allow an accessory
structure to be located O’ from the property line where 15’ was
required in July of 2016.

e 10722 Adventure Lane was granted a variance to allow an
accessory structure to have a setback of 5’ where 15’ was required
in January 2022. The structure was 264 square feet.

The following accessory structure variance was denied:
e 9121 Forestknolls Drive was denied a variance to allow a 576
square foot accessory structure to have a setback of 7.5 where
15’ was required in August of 2023.



@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Read + Montgomery, Ohio 45242 » (513) 891-2424

Staff Comments and Recommendations

Staff is of the opinion that the request to allow for the structure to have an &
setback may negatively impact surrounding properties, as structures of the
size require a 15’ setback. However, Staff does recognize that the location of
the panhandle lot and existing home and large oak tree, somewhat restricts
the placement of a detached garage. In addition, Staff does have some
concern with the reduced separation between structures, as the request is
significant, and a practical difficulty has not been clearly identified.

Staff believes that the variance to allow a 560 square foot accessory structure
to have a setback of 8 from the side property line where 15’ is required per
Schedule 151.1009 (B) of the Montgomery Zoning Code and in accordance
with the site plan dated 4/22/2024 would be justified by criteria #1, 5, 6, and
%,

Staff believes that the variance to allow an accessory structure to have a
setback from the principal building of 4° where 10’ is required per 151.1009(B)
and in accordance with the site plan dated 4/22/2024 would be justified by
criteria #5, 6, and 7.



@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.

APPLICATION FORM

Meeting (Circled: Board of Zoning Appeals Blanning Commission Landmarks
Commission

Project Address (Location): 9912 Forestglen Dr

Project Name (if applicable): Garage/shop/storage addition

Auditors Parcel Number: _ 603-0008-0378-00

Gross Acres. _ .459 Lots/Units 1 Commercial Square Footage

Additional Information:

PROPERTY OWNER(S) Eric & Melissa Day Contact Eric Day
Address 9912 Forestglen Dr Phone:_513.218.1446
City Montgomery State _ OH Zip 45242

E-mail address eday@transomdesignbuild.com

APPLICANT_Transom Design/Build Contact __Eric Day

Address 9912 Forestglen Dr Phone:_513.218.1446
City _Montgomery State _ OH Zip _45242
E-mail address eday@transomdesignbuild.com

| certify that | am the applicant and that the information submitted with this application is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and
belief. | understand the City is not responsible for inaccuracies in information presented, and that inaccuracies, false information or incompleate
application may cause the application to be rejected. | further certify that | am the owner or purchaser (or option holder) of the property
involved in this application, or the lessee or agaent fully authorized by the owner to make this submission, as indicated by the owner's signature
below.

Property Owner Signature f}?
i Vol FOR DEPARTMENT USE
ONLY +
Print Name Meeting Date:
Eric Day Total Fee:
Date 4/10/2024 Date Received:
Received By:

10101 Montgomery Road - Montgomery, Ohio 45242 - P: 513.891.2424 - F: 513.891.2498 - www.montgomeryohio.org




@

CIiTY OF

MONTGOMERY

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.

CONSENT OF OWNER(S) TO INSPECT PREMISES

To: City of Montgomery Board of Zoning Appeals Members and Staff
City Hall
10101 Montgomery Road
Montgomery, Ohio 45242

Re: Review Subject Site
Dear Members and Staff:

As owner(s) of the property located at 9912 Forestglen Dr

we hereby grant permission to Members of the Board of Zoning Appeals and Clty
of Montgomery Staff to enter the property for visual inspection of the exterior
premises. The purpose of said inspection is to review the existing conditions of the
subject site as they relate to the application as filed to the Board of Zoning
Appeals.

/
Property Owner(s) Signature ﬁ

Print Name _Eric & Melissa Day

Date _4/10/2024

Board of Zoning Appeals Members:

Mary Jo Byrnes
Tom Molloy
Jade Stewart
Steve Uckotter
Richard White

10101 Montgomery Road - Montgomery, Ohio 45242 - P: 513.891.2424 - F: 513.891.2498 - www.montgomeryohio.org




&

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.
Consideration for Approval of Dimensional Variances

The following criteria will be used, along with other testimony provided at the
public hearing to determine whether a practical difficulty exists that warrants a
variance from the Zoning Code. Applicants should be prepared to respond to
these issues.

1. Whether special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the
land or structure and which are not applicable to other lands or structures in
the same zoning district. Examples are narrowness, shallowness or steepness
of the lot, or adjacency to non-conforming uses.

Existing 1973 ranch home is situated on north side setback as well as the south side setback on the edge of
driveway with rear flag lot. Please see surveyed site plan with proposed placement with neighbors house
placed on the site plan. The possibility of the rear yard to house a detached garage is problematic, due the
Slope, drainage retention, back yard neighbor (flag lot) and 9912 Forestglen’s existing structures rear master
bedroom windows inhibiting a rear garage addition.

10101 Montgomery Road - Montgomery, Ohio 45242 - P:513.891.2424 - F: 513.891.2498 - www.montgomeryochio.org




@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.

2. Will the property vield a reasonable rate of return if the variance is not
granted?

If the variance is NOT granted, 9912 Forestglen would have a hard time in resale do to the limited amount of
off street parking and interior storage. 9912 Forestglen has a smaller than average 2 car garage AND only a
300 sq ft FULL basement and storage is currently housed in a rear trailer. Being a ranch this makes it

extremely difficult to store average household items. The intention is new garage will eliminate rear yard
shed, trailer, and outside truck parking on driveway.

3. |s the variance substantial? Is it the minimum necessary?

The variance is minimal: 1) Decreasing the current side setback from 15’ to 8’-3/4" 2) Decreasing the
accessory structure distance from the principle structure from 10’ to 4

4. Will the character of the neighborhood be substantially altered?
The character of the neighborhood would NOT be affected, as the same architectural features as the existing
house will be maintained in the new garage structure. 1) Same Hardie board & batten 2) Same roof pitch

(3:12) and asphalt shingle color and detailing

5. Would this variance adversely affect the delivery of government services?

No government services affected by the requested variances.

10101 Montgomery Road - Montgomery, Ohio 45242 - P: 513.891.2424 - F: 513.891.2498 - www.montgomeryohio.org




@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.

6. Did the owner purchase the property with the knowledge of the zoning
restraint?

Initially, we were not aware of the side setback being 15’ and where the property lines actually were. The
property corners are currently set and marked along with a licensed survey and CAD drawing for future
improvements to be utilized.

7. Whether special conditions exist as a result of the actions of the owner?

Please see the site survey Al for the proposed placement of the garage structure.

8. Whether the owner's predicament can be feasibly obviated through some
other method?

No, not if we intend to remain as residents of the property.

9. Would the spirit and intent behind the zoning requirement be observed and
substantial justice done by granting the variance?
Yes

10. Would granting the variance confer on the applicant any special privilege

that is denied to other properties in this district?

To our knowledge there is no other properties in the Forestglen subdivision that has this particular issue.

10101 Montgomery Road - Montgomery, Ohio 45242 - P: 513.891.2424 - F: 513.891.2498 - www.montgomeryohio.org




In) ke £ 3 L OuU AY generated on 4/10/2024 9:35:37 AM ED
Parcel ID Address Index Order Tax Year |
603-0008-0378-00 9912 FORESTGLEN DR Parcel Number 2023 Payable 2024 _

formation

Tax District 211 - MONTGOMERY-SYCAMORE CSD Images/Sketches
School District SYCAMORE CSD b o/,
Appraisal Area Auditor Land Use

60313 - MONTGOMERY 13 510 - SINGLE FAMILY DWLG

Sales
Owner Name and Address Tax Bill Mail Address

DAY MELISSA L & ERIC ] DAY MELISSA L & ERIC ]

9912 FORESTGLEN DRIVE 9912 FORESTGLEN DRIVE

CINCINNATI OH 45242 CINCINNATI OH 45242

(call 946-4015 if incorrect) (Questions? 946-4800 or

treasurer.taxbills@hamilton-co.org)

Assessed Value Effective Tax Rate Total Tax

142,270 55.899522 $7,151.93

Property Description
FORESTGLEN DR 95 X 210.53 LOT 23 FOREST GLEN ESTS SUB BLK B

i Apprais SUmmary Tax/Credit/Value Summary
Year Built 1973 Board of Revision YES(09)
Total Rooms 8 Rental Registration No
# Bedrooms 3 Homestead No
# Full Bathrooms 3 Owner Occupancy Credit Yes
# Half Bathrooms 0 Foreclosure No
Last Transfer Date 6/21/2017 Special Assessments Yes
Last Sale Amount $310,000 Market Land Value 105,550
Conveyance Number 144074 CAUV Value V]
Deed Type TR - Trustees Deed (Conv) Market Improvement Value 300,850
Deed Number Market Total Value 406,500
# of Parcels Sold 1 TIF Value 0
Acreage 0.459 Abated Value 0
Exempt Value 0
Taxes Paid $3,578.26




NO7°07'36"W

210.53'

g i
R o
T N82°5224'E T
T es00 |
f f
_ L
40"

! _,
|

_7

|

|

|

$82°52'24"W

95.00"

S07°07'36'E
210.53

| _New 14' x 40" Garage Structure

(560 sqft)

k,mm B

_16-0"

f |

{

|

[ UNIT:

|

__u\m
{

i ) ) A
7 GENERAL NOTES: |

I

" DRAWING TITLE:

9912 Farestglen Dr
Master Site Plan

"DRAWN BY: | (CHECKED BY:
E Day

APPROVED mJ 7 DATE:

" CLIENT
Melissa Day |

9912 Faresiglen Dr
Manigomery, OH 45242

5138840223 Cell
melissodoy242@gmail.com

Transom Design/Build
513.218.1446 Cell
\ edoy@iransomdesignbuild.com

OJECT NO: # m‘o?J

PROJECT NAME:;

Site Plan

b

-

04/9/2024

DESIGN.BUILD

/

1 10:00| _ﬁ*

”ﬁcx?\_zm zoé [ SHEET NO 4

001

REVISION: _ ( v

Q01

AD

L !




12-54"

90"

T2

- .

140"

——— Storage/Shop

™S— Truck Parking

3 12 Roof Pitch
Asphalt shingle to malch existing roof

Board & Ballen lo match exisiting siding
Smoolh hardie panel w/f polyurathane trim
SW "Shade Grown" {Dark Groen)

s

|

|

| REVISION:

/

v

|

A |description

DRAWING TITLE:

PROJECT NAME:

Garage/Shop
Storage Addition

9912 Forestglen Dr

Master Site

" DRAWN BY: y E

E Day

IAPPROVED mj ﬁ

Plan

CHECKED BY:]

04/11/2024

CLIENT

Melissa Day

9912 Forestglen Dr

Montgomery, OH 45242

513.884.0293 Cell

melssaday242@gmail.com

ARCHITECT:

PROJECT NO:| | SCALE;

DESIGN.BUILD

Transom Design/Build

513.218.14456 Cell

edoy@Iran:omdesignbuild.com

DRAWING NO:

002 :

001

UNIT: 4

000

SHEET NO
AO

~ DATE:

»)

/

|




13%11

n
7

131

|
,
|
e
T | == [ = =g A 7
bl L_ _ 1 [t
S S N
3d 53 —
i T 1
e . . — e e )
P
A B —
W"_\N 7
|
4 7
1 _—

40-0"

|| GENERAL NOTES:

" PROJECT NAME:

Garage/Shop
Storage Addition

_\ DRAWING TITLE:

9912 Forestglen Dr
Master Site Plan

DRAWN BY: n:mo_mmo m

E Day _
APPROVED mj " DATE:
y 04/11/2024

" CLIENT
Melissa Day

%912 Foresiglen Dr
Montgomery, OH 45242

513.884.0293 Cell
melssaday2428gmail.com

Tronsom Design/Build

513.218.1444 Cell
m.,5<@:a?ciamm:.

1 nbvild.com

ﬁmOLmO._. NO: ‘ 'SCALE!

o oc

"SHEETNO
AD

ﬁomps__zo 204 (
ﬁ 001

REVISION; 4 ("

ﬁ UNIT: 4 ,

/




7
g0 s

14'-0"

134117

e

A description by ot (|

_M
Lo W.

Garage/Shop
Storage Addition

! DRAWING TITLE:

9912 Forestglen Dr i
Master Site Plan i

L

s

I DRAWN BY: * /CHECKED BY:
£ Day | =

h, i

'APPROVED BY: ©  DATE:

04/11/2024

PR

CLIENT
Melissa Day

9912 Foresiglen Or |
Montgomery, OH 45242 i

513.884,0293 Cell
melssaday242&gmeil.com

ARCHITECT:

DESIGN.BUILD

Transom Design/Buld
513.218.1444 Cell

. ecday@lransomdesignbuild.com
%

{PROJECT NO:» “scater /1
- 0:00 A4

| g R AN p
‘DRAWING NO? ~ SHEET NO

”, 003 | AO

~,

 REVISION: "
004




|| GENERAL NOTES:

FIEN

{ 4 . LA ,

T S

' PROJECT NAME:

Garage/Shop
Storage Addition

| DRAWING TITLE:

| :
9912 Forestglen Dr
Master Site Plan

E Day - i
N EE _
|/APPROVED BY: ©  DATE:
_ g 04/11/2024 |
o .
|! CLIENT d

Melissa Day W

9912 Foreslglen Dr
Monigomery, OH 45242

513.884.0293 Cell
melssaday242@gmail.com

.

DESIGN.BUILD

| Transem Design/Build
513.218.1446 Cell
_., eday&ransomdesignbuild com \" |
N S
S sy |
{PROJECT NO:" "'SCALE} * /_ “

. - 0:00, AS
AL A

14
|(DRAWING NO?  SHEETNO
! 005 AD i

L AR

7 REVISION:
i 001




_ 24' Dia oak (w/ 67' dia canopy) to be removed

- Canopy provides 75%

- 2.3 smaller trees may have to be removed

depending on their root structure

Non-preferred location:
- Studied garage/storage placement
(28' wide x 24’ long min}
- Excessive slope for slab foundation
- Rear corner 37" above front grade,
which creates issues:
1) Blocks 9910's front windows
2) Creates more excessive
storm water runoff
3) Created 40% more paved surface
to the driveway
4) Oak tree removal creates 75%
more sun exposure
5) 9910 & 9914 neighbors are
NQOT in support

210.53

NO7°07'36"W

shade on neighbors roof

5
o
| N82°5224°E T
95.00
S,
ity
1l
bl
3
\
VA
%
\
\
40" - l\w
|
|
|
|
S825224W
95.00

— 9910 Front windows

%
®
=% -t .
|
— ——Existing shed to be demo'd
iy .
b s
w
©| &
25
N2IE
\ M~ 7 o
o
SRV
|
’ 1 "
| 805

|- Proposed .
New 14' x 40" garage structure
(560 saft)

e

0914 Forestglen Dr

Same location and concrete ma

osed driveway re lacement:

terial

GENERAL NOTES:

A | description by e refsx

PROJECT NAME: 1

Site Plan

<

DRAWING TITLE:

9912 Forestglen Dr
Master Site Plan

—

DRAWN m%g anzmoxmc BY:

E Day
APPROVED B DATE:
- ﬁ 04/22/2024
CLIENT
Melissa Day

9912 Foreslglen Dr
Mantgomery, OH 45242

513.884,0293 Cell
, melissaday242@gmail.com
———

~

—

; ‘
ARCHITECT:

DESIGN.BUILD

Transom Design/Build
513.218.1446 Cell
eday@transomdesignbuild.com

.

_vg SCALE] |
o 0:00 >o_
(DRAWING NO7| [ SHEET NO
oo : o |
"REVISION: T

002




1'%’

BASIS OF BEARINGS:
FOREST GLEN ESTATES PLAT
HAMILTON COUNTY RECORDS

1

NOTES:

OCCUPATION IN GENERAL FITS SURVEY,
UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

DOCUMENTS USED:

~DEED BOOK 13448, PACE 1082
~FOREDT GLEN ESTATES
BLOCK "B”

PLAT BOOK 81, PGS, 28-29

LOT 22

w.mwh.whmu..nhh%u%ﬁ%ﬂhﬂﬂhhhﬁﬂeﬁ%%ﬁﬁ .V/.\G. HMLHDEQH

RETURN OF A SURVEY MADE UNDER MY DIRECTION IN JUNE 2017 AND
THAT ALL MONUMENTS HAVE BEEN FOUND TO EXIST OR SET AS SHOWN.

THOMAS J. MACK, P.S5. No. 7964 DATE

LOT 23

(0.4591 ACRES)

SURVEY PLAT
LOT 23
FOREST GLEN ESTATES
SECTION 4, TOWN 4, RANGE 1
CITY OF MONTGOMERY

HAMILTON COUNTY, OHIO
PARCEL 603—-8-378

9912 FORESTGLEN DRIVE

CURRENT OWNERS:

DAY, ERIC J.
& MELISSA L.

D.B. 13448, PG. 1082

LOT 24
LEGEND
o 5/8" IRON PIN
SET OR FOUND
ScALE: =30
o’ 30’ 60’
CLIENT: DAY

BYRNSIDE SURVEYING, LLC

P.0. BOX 541066

CINCINNATI, OHIO 45254

513—474-6020

SCALE: 1"=30"

DRAWN BY: TJIM

DATE: 6 /26 /2017

JOB _NO: 17038




9910 Forestglen Dr
Montgomery, OH 45242
April 27, 2024
Board of Zoning Appeals
City of Montgomery
10101 Montgomery Rd
Montgomery, OH 45242

RE: 9912 Forestglen
To Whom It May Concern:

We live on a panhandle lot adjacent to 3912 Forestglen. Our house sits behind the Days’
property, about 13 feet from the backyard’s property line.

We have closely reviewed the Days’ plans to build a structure on their property in a location
that requires a variance. We support their plans.

The proposed location actually enhances our enjoyment of our property, because it will allow
more daylight into our property and increase the amount of open space outside our kitchen
window. The City’s suggested location would only do the opposite, encroaching our view
outside of our kitchen window and also blocking daylight.

We ask that the Board of Zoning Appeals grant the variance to the Days.

Sincerely,

MAM W@M

PAUL A, FORSHEY CONSTANCE M. PILLICH




Melissa Hays

From: jennifergrote <jennifergrote821@hotmail.com>
Sent: Monday, May 20, 2024 2:18 PM

To: Melissa Hays

Subject: notice of Zoning request

You don't often get email from jennifergrote821@hotmail.com. Learn why this is important

Hello Melissa,

| am writing concerning a notice we received about a neighbors request for permits. 9912
residents are requesting permits for two structures and driveway changes at their home. We
have reviewed the changes and understand the concerns of the residents of 9910 and 9914.
Because of their concerns we do not support their request.

Thank you for informing us,
Daryl and Jennifer Grote



CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road = Montgomery, Chio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

Application for Variance: Abigail and Lance Busdeker

May 28, 2024
Staff Report

Applicant: Abigail and Lance Busdeker
8821 Weller Road
Montgomery, Ohio 45249
Property Owner: SAME

Vicinity Map:

Nature of Request:

Property owners Abigail and Lance Busdeker, request to allow for an accessory
parking area to have a setback of 13.2’ from the front property line where 25’ is
required per Schedule 151.1009 (B) of the Montgomery Zoning Code. A second
variance is being requested to allow the expansion of the legal non-conforming
driveway, 20°3” x 16’, to have a setback of .2’ where 5’ is required per Schedule

151.009(B) of the Montgomery Zoning Code.



@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road *+ Montgomery, Ohio 45242 » (513) 891-2424

Zoning:

This property is zoned ‘A’ - Single Family Residential and is used for a single-
family residence. All surrounding properties are also zoned ‘A’ single family
residential and are being used as single-family residences.

Findings:

1.

The lot is approximately 20,560 square feet, which exceeds the 20,000
square foot minimum required in the ‘A’ District.

Schedule 151.1009(b) of the Montgomery Zoning Code requires
accessory off-street parking to be located 25’ from the front property
line or the right-of-way line if the property line runs to the centerline of
the street.

Schedule 151.1009(b) of the Montgomery Zoning Code requires
driveways to have a setback of 5.

The dwelling has a side loading garage with 2 enclosed parking spaces.

On-street parking is not permitted on Weller Road, which is also defined
as a Collector Road by the Hamilton County Thoroughfare Plan.

The existing driveway has a legal non-conforming setback of .2” where
5’ is required.

Variance Considerations:

Section 150.2010 allows the Board of Zoning Appeals to grant dimensional
variances when the applicant can establish a practical difficulty. The City has
established the following criteria for evaluating hardships:

7.

Whether special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to
the land and/ or structure involved?

The dwelling has a front yard setback of 49.6° where 50’ is required in the
‘A’ District, and therefore has a legal non-conforming front yard setback.
In addition, Weller Road does allow for on-street parking, and the nearest
on-street parking is located in the Reserves or Tanagerwoods



u

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road « Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

subdivisions. The driveway setback is also legal non-conforming, with a
distance of .2’ where 5' is required.

2. Will the property yield a reasonable rate of return if the variance is not
granted?

Staff is of the opinion that there may not be a reasonable rate of return if
the accessory off-street parking variance is not granted. The accessory
off-street parking spaces will allow for additional off-street parking
and/or a turnaround area for vehicles. Backing out onto Weller Road can
be challenging and no on-street parking is permitted, further limiting the
parking of vehicles.

Staff is of the opinion that there would be a reasonable rate of return if
the driveway extension variance is not granted, as the applicant does
have the ability to meet the 5’ side yard setback requirement.

3. Is the variance substantial? Is it the minimum necessary?

The accessory off-street parking variance request is substantial as the
applicant is requesting a 74% reduction. However, the variance would
not be visually substantial, as there is a significant amount of right of way
along Weller Road. There is approximately 20’ between the edge of
pavement and the right of way line; this is approximately 7° more than
what is typical. Staffis of the opinion that this is the minimum necessary
to allow for two additional vehicles to be parked and/or this area to be
used a turnaround space for vehicles.

The request for the driveway extension is the minimum necessary to
allow 2 additional vehicles to be parked at the end of the driveway. The
setback variance request is substantial, as they are requesting a 96%
reduction.

4. Will the character of the neighborhood be substantially altered?

Staff is of the opinion that the neighborhood would not be substantially
altered by granting the variances, as the nearest driveway s
approximately 15’ from the side property line. In addition, the proposed
parking pad would be located approximately 33’ from the edge of
pavement.



@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road « Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

5.

Would this variance adversely affect the delivery of government services?
Government services would not be affected by granting the variance.

Did the owner purchase the property with the knowledge of the zoning
restraint?

The applicant has stated that they were not aware of the zoning restraint.
Whether special conditions exist as a result of the actions of the owner?
No special conditions exist as a result of the actions of the owner.

Whether the owner’s predicament can be feasibly obviated through some
other method?

The accessory off-street parking variance could not be shifted back on
the lot further due to the current placement of the walkway. The
applicant has proposed a new walkway to somewhat curve around the
proposed parking pad. Inregard to the driveway extension, the applicant
does have the ability to maintain a 5’ side yard setback. However, the
applicant is proposing the extension be flush with the existing driveway.

It is important to note that the property does have an existing driveway
and two enclosed parking spaces, as required by code.

Would the spirit and intent behind the zoning requirement be observed
and substantial justice done by granting the variance?

The intent of the accessory off-street parking setback is to reduce visual
clutter by requiring parking pads to be located closer to the house and
to provide for safe travel by requiring the parking pad to be located 25’
from the right of way. Weller Road has a large amount of right of way
and there is no sidewalk along this stretch; therefore Staff is of the
opinion that approving the variance request would not increase visual
clutter adjacent to the roadway.

Staff believes the intent of the 5" setback is to allow distance between
impervious surfaces and improve water runoff, as well as providing an
area to complete any work on a driveway or walkway without entering



@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road * Montgomery, Ohio 45242 » (513) 891-2424

10.

onto a neighboring property. The nearest driveway is located
approximately 15’ from the side property line, and Staff is unaware of any
drainage issues at this location.

Staff does not believe that it is the intent of the zoning code to inhibit
improvements to an existing property, if the improvement would not be
detrimental to the surrounding properties or character of the
neighborhood, the request is reasonable and a practical difficulty has
been established.

Would granting the variance confer on the applicant any special
privilege that is denied to other properties in this district?

With regards to accessory off-street parking, the following variances
have been approved:

A variance for 9991 Zig Zag Road to allow an accessory parking area to
be O’ from the right of way was granted October 23, 2018.

A variance for 9978 Knollbrook Terrace to allow an accessory parking
area to be O’ from the right of way was granted October 18, 2021.

A variance for 7379 Cornell Road to allow an accessory parking area to
be 15’ from the right of way was granted October 26, 2021.

A variance for 7875 Pfeiffer Road to allow an accessory parking area to
be 2’ from the right of way was granted November 23, 2021.

A variance for 7880 Pfeiffer Road to allow an accessory parking area to
be 10.4’ from the right of way was granted May 24, 2022.

There have been seven dimensional variances granted for driveway
setbacks in the ‘A’ District as described below:

A variance of 5 for a length of 42.67to allow for the construction of a
new concrete driveway along the west property line at 7841 Campus
Lane.

A variance of 3’ for a length of 66’ for a widening of a driveway at 12040
Cooperwood Lane was granted in February 2015.



@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road * Montgomery, Ohio 45242 = (513) 891-2424

A variance of 3.5 for a new driveway at 9759 Cooper Lane and 9763
Cooper Lane was granted in July 2002. Both of these lots were non-
conforming to the ‘A’ District in regards to lot width and side-yard
setbacks. The lot width of both properties was approximately 77’ and
both homes were setback from the side property line approximately 10.5.

A variance was granted for a property at 9073 East Kemper Road in
August 2006 to allow the property owner to expand the turning area for
an existing driveway. The turning area was permitted to be 2’ from the
side property line. In the motion, the Board stated that they believed the
applicant had a special circumstance due to poor visibility exiting onto a
Class 2 road (E. Kemper Road). The Board also granted a variance of 0.5’
to allow for the driveway apron to be 4.5’ from the side property line.

A variance was granted for 9590 Ross Avenue to allow a driveway to
have a setback of 3’ for a length of 125’ in 2015.

A variance was granted for 9778 Ross Avenue to allow a portion of a
driveway to have a setback of 2'4” in 2017.

A variance to allow a driveway and walk area to be setback 2'6” from
the side property line at 8307 Turtlecreek Lane was approved in 2022.

Three driveway setback variances have been denied in the ‘A’ District, as
described below:

A variance was denied in February of 2013 for a property at 10413
Birkemeyer Drive to allow for a new driveway to encroach a maximum of
2.5 into the required 5 side-yard setback. This project was a
teardown/rebuild on a conforming lot.

A variance was denied for 8718 Tanagerwoods Drive to allow for a
driveway extension to be setback 3.76’ for a length of 21" in 2015.

A variance was denied for 9047 E. Kemper Road to allow for a driveway
for a new single-family dwelling to have a setback of 2’ in 2015.



@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road = Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

Staff Comments and Recommendations

Staff believes the variance request for the accessory off-street parking to
have a setback of 13.2° would not be detrimental to surrounding properties
and would allow for both additional parking and the ability to turn around a
vehicle within the driveway. A practical difficulty has been established due to
the absence of on-street parking, the high volume of traffic, legal non-
conforming front yard setback, and large amount of right of way along Weller
Road.

Staff believes that the driveway extension encroachment into the 5’ setback
would not negatively impact the adjacent property or neighborhood due to
the large distances between driveways, but there is a concern of setting
precedence and the lack of a practical difficulty. However, there are six
homes located on this block and three of the six have legal non-conforming
driveway setbacks.

Approving an accessory off-street parking area to be 13.2’ from the front
property line where 25’ is required per Schedule 151.1009(B) of the
Montgomery Zoning Code, could be justified by criteria #1-10.

Approving a driveway extension of 20.3’ in length with a setback of .2" where
5’ is required per Schedule 151.1009(B) of the Montgomery Zoning Code,
could be justified by criteria #1, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 9.



o

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.

APPLICATION FORM

Meeting (Circle): Board of Zoning Appedls Planning Commission Landmarks

Commission
Project Address (Location): £9 2/ WC//(C la
Project Name (if applicable): (Detve wA1 S‘IF&'?‘?

Auditors Parcel Number: (03 =002 - 053~ 0O

Gross Acres: * 472 Lots/Units —7— Commercial Square Footage

Additional Information:

ROPERTY OWNER(S) Asiati] aw lawes Bosvamee oo Hasy Bosrexer
Address 9521 We//t'ﬂ 'Z’ Bhare: <fe- F19- 007%
City Maﬁ/fé"Y“f&'? State  OH Zip YT Y7

E-mail address J'HN-"GWGVSDE“'E"@ gl com

APPLICANT /‘qﬁfﬁ"'./ Jawses Buosocw e Contact
Address 552/ W(//f-C /ZP. Phone: /2~ 7/?"0"75
City /b/ o' T 6-omert State d/y Zip ¥y2Y7

E-rmail address _ TANSEn BUSDEreER. (@ fmm]. cam.
—

| certify that | am the applicant and that the information submitted with this application is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and
belief. | understand the City is not respensible for inaccuracies in information presented, and that inaccuracies, false information or incomplete
application may cause the application to be rejected. | further certify that | am the owner or purchaser (or option holder) of the property
‘nvoived in this application, or the lessee or agent fully autherized by the owner to make this submission, as indicated by the owner’s signature

below.
Propérty C)S\%nelzgrlat/t{re

W y\// FOR DEPARTMENT USE
ONLY O
Print Name ' Meeting Date:

i | e 60"45(0 6050&2}66/‘ Total Fee:
Date Omdsf C{ 2()24 Date Received:

r Received By:

10101 Montgomery Road - Montgomery, Ohio 45242 - P: 513.891.2424 - F: 513.891 .2498 - www.montgomeryohio.org




@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.

CONSENT OF OWNER(S) TO INSPECT PREMISES

To: City of Montgomery Board of Zoning Appeals Members and Staff
City Hall
10101 Montgomery Road
Montgomery, Ohio 45242

Re: Review Subject Site
Dear Members and Staff;

As owner(s) of the property located at %21 Wellee 2o

we hereby grant permission to Members of the Board of Zoning Appeals and Ci ty
of Montgomery Staff to enter the property for visual inspection of the exterior
premises. The purpose of said inspection is to review the existing conditions of the
subject site as they relate to the application as filed to the Board of Zoning

Appeals.
Property Owner(s) Signature % A‘QCW
Print Name /Arca /?vspew /4‘5,4,,“/ Tth gv.rpcu:ca.._

Date S’/!/Z‘f

Board of Zoning Appeals Members:

Mary Jo Byrnes
Tom Molloy
Jade Stewart
Steve Uckotter
Richard White

10101 Montgomery Road - Montgomery, Ohio 45242 - P: 513.891.2424 - F: 513.891.2498 - www.montgomeryohio.org




@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.
Consideration for Approval of Dimensional Variances

The following criteria will be used, along with other testimony provided at the
public hearing to determine whether a practical difficulty exists that warrants a
variance from the Zoning Code. Applicants should be prepared to respond to
these issues.

1. Whether special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the
land or structure and which are not applicable to other lands or structures in
the same zoning district. Examples are narrowness, shallowness or steepness
of the lot, or adjacency to non-conforming uses.

DeivewA MoObIFicAtD o ReMe [SiPE  gF flome s
Impprove€ VEHI¢v/An SAFE 1.

2. Will the property vield a reasonable rate of return if the variance is not
granted?

/V/A ~ Tnis is Pveely A Pvafic sAaFeky [ssve,

3. |s the variance substantial? Is it the minimum necessary?

Mo

4. Will the character of the neighborhood be substantially altered?

Me. Owlt  PArtially  visigle From Yk  Sheeet,

5. Would this variance adversely affect the delivery of government services?

Mo

10101 Montgomery Road - Montgomery, Ohio 45242 - P: 513.891.2424 - F: 51 3.891.2498 - www.montgomeryohio.org




o

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.

6. Did the owner purchase the property with the knowledge of the zoning
restraint?

MNe

7. Whether special conditions exist as a result of the actions of the owner?

A [A

8. Whether the owner’s predicament can be feasibly obviated through some
other method?

Tre “Do mothisb " Ccemanto  jovolves  THE  Conrtimvancee

of A VEricle BACkiMe  jato an  TweR€ASi~olq Bt STR<cf
(welles. [2o, )

9. Would the spirit and intent behind the zoning requirement be observed and
substantial justice done by granting the variance?

‘/zr ~ e A/‘{f“'fﬂ-"-\’ Probesep Imlove s P
Pus e S4aFeST.

10. Would granting the variance confer on the applicant any special privilege
that is denied to other properties in this district?

b

10101 Montgomery Road - Montgomery, Ohio 45242 - P: 513.891.2424 - F: 513.891.2438 - www.montgomeryohio.org




May 9, 2024
Dear Montgomery Zoning Commission,

Thank you for considering our driveway variance request at 8821 Weller Road. We purchased our home
in 2012 and immediately became active members in the community. Our three children, ages 13, 11 and
9, all attend Sycamore schools. Lance graduated from the Montgomery Community Leadership Academy
and has coached many sports through the years including baseball, basketball and lacrosse. Abby is an
active volunteer at Sycamore Schools including sitting on the Sycamore Advisory Council and
volunteering for Sycamore Ambassadors. Montgomery is our home and our community.

We are seeking a driveway variance to ensure the safety of our children, family and friends. Currently,
our driveway is single lane and poses several safety issues.

e Our driveway sits on a blind hill. As we exit the driveway, we must inch out of the driveway and
watch as cars come over the hill to our north. As we are sure Montgomery law enforcement can
attest, drivers seldom follow the 25 MPH speed limit and periodically cars are going 35 - 40 MPH.
Each week we have “close calls” as cars speed up this blind hill.

e Tree line along the road. While this makes the road aesthetically beautiful, the trees greatly
impede our view of traffic coming from both the north and the south.

e Since the driveway is single lane, it is impossible to turn around to exit the driveway front facing.
Currently we turn around in our front lawn, especially during rush hour and times when the park
and Good Shepherd are busy. Backing out of the driveway during these busy times is nearly
impossible.

e Weller Road does not have street parking. Friends and family must park in our driveway. Space
is limited for parking and we must help them pull out of the driveway to ensure a safe exit.

e The most critical safety issue is that of new drivers. Our son, and later our two daughters, will be
driving before we know it. Our children and their friends should not be pulling out blindly from our
driveway. Even the most seasoned drivers have difficulty. The current road situation makes this
an even more treacherous maneuver for young drivers.

We did consider a circle drive as an alternative solution. In doing our research, there are two main
barriers to this solution.

e The circle drive would be immediately over our water line. If access to the water line was
needed, it would be necessary to destroy a portion of the driveway. This would result in tens of
thousands of additional dollars in concrete to repair.

e The cost for the circle drive was considerably more expensive therefore, putting it well outside of
our budget.

We have worked diligently with Seilers Landscaping and RCK Concrete to create a plan that addresses
the safety concerns yet is visually appealing. The combination of extending the driveway and adding the
pad will allow us and others to safely exit our driveway. Our hope is to stay in our home within the
Montgomery community. Thank you for considering this variance so we can make our home safe for
family and friends.

With gratitude,

e and Abby Busdeker



Ze-¥Z 'ON 80P _ tz/e0/s VA
Q€ = .l 3[edg -
S0josIp ADW YDIDBS B)}i} JUSLIND pUD 2)DIN22D
OHP 03NDIHD % JOR NAVHD _ Of=,1 338 up JoY) S)oD) AUD Jo '3dUBPIAG BjN) ‘diySiaumo
'SJUDUBADD BAJJOLNSOL ‘SODUDIQUINIUS ‘PI0IDI O
i1g1-8 (€15} Slustiosba o) YoIDos JUSpUsdapU] L0 UORDENSAAUL
06 08 oe 0 o
ou apol soY Jodeains |puojssayoud syl FLON

iswesn)gdynpff jjow3
9¥2GF OHO ‘ILWNNIONID 3O 44nQ 3-8CRF

SHOATAYNS -SHTANIINT
"ONI ‘SALYIDOSSY B Ad4Nd ' NHOr

—_—

P

OIHO ‘AINNOD NOLTINVH | a_h
AYANODINON 40 AL | § s
I HONVY ‘A ‘S NMOL ‘62 NOILAS | & m\“ |

-—

!
£01.LOT

_ £
o —

wOu ID0TE
SAOOM JADVNV.L |
LYVId SONVIIVA )

—_——

0000z
J ., 005t59

%
— —_—

ITTTAM

901 LOT

0000z

L01 10T |
i
]




OB 20 92 FT [@RCELET)

A CIVISCN OF STLERS NVRCAMENTAL SERVETS
7912820

SEILER'S
LANDSCAPING

4035 DEER PARK AVENUE CINCINNATL OH 45236

@

-
-

-
.

-
i
L

(@ )
& M
. J
g '
BUSDEKER RESIDENCE
882! WELLER RD
L MONTGOMERY OH 45249

-
THS DRAMNG & THE PROPERTY OF




Example of letter given to neighbors at 8815 and 8825 Weller Rd

Lance and Abby Busdeker
8821 Weller Rd.
Montgomery, OH 45249
04/26/2024

Dave and Mary
8815 Weller Rd.
Montgomery, OH 45249

Dear Dave and Mary:

We wanted to make you aware we are working with the City of Montgomery on a zoning variance to
improve the safety of our driveway. As you know, our driveway requires us to back onto Weller Rd
which can be dangerous for the following reasons:

e The amount and speed of traffic on Weller Rd.
e The blind spot due to the hill north of our driveway.
e The visual obstruction caused by the tree line along the road.

Hayes, Stella, and Maeve are future drivers. In order to improve the safety, we are looking to replace
our driveway and create an area for us to turn around. This will allow us to exit our driveway facing
forward. As part of this plan, we will be modernizing our back patio, sidewalk, and landscaping
(inclusive of the south facing side of the house which faces you). We have included a copy of our plan
for your review.

Having been great neighbors of ours, we want to proactively provide you the details to ensure you do
not have any apprehensions. If necessary, we would be more than happy to discuss in more detail prior
to our May 28 meeting with the city.

Thank you,

Lance and Abby Busdeker



Melissa Hays

From: jwaggoner.1@fuse.net

Sent: Monday, May 20, 2024 8:56 PM
To: Melissa Hays

Subject: Variance for 8821 Weller Rd

You don't often get email from jwaggoner.1@fuse.net. Learn why this is important

Dear Melissa,

My name is Jason Waggoner. I live at 11708 Laurelview Dr. I received in the mail a letter about the notice of a
public meeting on Tuesday May 28, 2024, for a proposed variance for the property on 8821 Weller Rd.

I am writing to state that I support this variance request and have no issues with the proposed design. Please feel
free to contact me for any further information.

Thank you!

Regards,
Jason Waggoner

513-478-9017



CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road * Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

CITY OF MONTGOMERY
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

Application for Variance: Former Don’s Auto
9393 Shelly Lane

May 23, 2024
Staff Report

Applicant: Mike Wentz and Eric Hines
7213 Remington Road
Montgomery, Ohio 45242

Property Owner: James Tucker and David Shannon
5485 Brewer Road
Mason, Ohio 45040

Vicinity Map:




@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road « Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

Nature of Request:

The applicants and potential buyers, Mike Wentz and Eric Hines, are
requesting a variance to provide no on-site parking spaces, where Schedule
151.3204 and Section 151.3207 of the Montgomery Zoning Code requires a
minimum of 10 spaces in the Outer Old Montgomery District for the proposed
office and art gallery uses.

Zoning:

The property is zoned ‘OM’ - Outer Old Montgomery. Office and art galleries
are permitted uses within the district. The property is also located in the
Heritage District and as such the building design is subject to review by the
Landmarks Commission. The property is not a Landmark or contributing
structure. The property to the north is zoned ‘OM’ - Quter Old Montgomery
and used for Krombholz Jewelers and public parking. The property to the
south is zoned ‘OM’ - Outer Old Montgomery and is currently vacant and the
Former Village Hall Landmark Structure. The property to the west is zoned
‘OM’ - Outer Old Montgomery and is used for Le Salon. The property to the
east across Shelly Lane is zone ‘OM’ - Core Old Montgomery and is used for
various office uses.

Findings:

1. The structure has served as the home of Don’s Auto Repair for several
years. Recently the owners have decided to retire and listed the
business for sale. An Auto Repair use is non-conforming in the Outer
Old Montgomery District.



CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road « Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

2. A Montgomery Resident, Eric Hines, and a longtime Montgomery
business owner, Mike Wentz, have an option to purchase the building
with the intent to convert the building into an art studio and an office
use for Wentz Design. Office and art galleries are permitted uses within
the district; however, regulations would require that parking
requirements be met with any proposed change of use. The prospective
buyers’ option to purchase lapses at the end of May and the applicants
are requesting a parking variance for their proposed uses as zero
parking spaces can fit on the current site.



@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road » Montgomery, Chio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

AT A

K - 7 - )
/I,,.‘ - .f | 3

Y

\5:\

i ¥
£5s

Eawd - o
e, Fr

i fasled

3. The site is currently one parcel, and the property is approximately
0.099 or approximately 4,312 square feet.

4. The property is located on Shelly Lane approximately 80 feet from a
public parking lot with approximately 222 parking spaces.

5. The applicant is proposing to remodel the existing commercial structure
as well as construct a second story on the northern two thirds of the
structure. The building was built in 1936 and is 3,648 square feet
according to Auditor’s data.

6. The applicant has provided a layout for the remodeling to be contained
within the existing footprint. Approximately 1,000 square feet of a new



o

CiTY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road = Montgemery, Chio 45242 + (513) 891-2424

enclosed second story space will be added along with almost nine
hundred square feet of exterior deck.

7. The architecture, building materials, signage and colors were approved
by Landmarks Commission on May 8th, 2024.

Variance Considerations:

Section 150.2010 allows the Board of Zoning Appeals to grant dimensional
variances when the applicant can establish a practical difficulty. The City has
established the following criteria for evaluating hardships:

1. Whether special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar
to the land and/ or structure involved?

The building is unique as it occupies almost the entirety of a small lot
located in our historic downtown that currently provides no onsite
parking. For a number of years, it was a non-conforming auto repair
use that utilized the Shelly Lane public parking for customers parking.

2. Will the property yield a reasonable rate of return if the variance is not
granted?

It is our understanding that the property has been for sale for a number
of months without any viable buyer interest in continuing with auto
repair. Staff believes the property will need to be changed to a
permitted use in order to vield a reasonable rate of return. As such, any
future use would require granting a parking variance to allow for a
reasonable rate of return.

3. Is the variance substantial? Is it the minimum necessary?

When taken as a total, the cumulative amount of the variance is
substantial as the applicant is asking to provide zero parking spaces on
site. As analyzed by staff a total of 12 spaces would be normally
required for the combination of office space (Wentz Design) and retall
use (Art Studio). However, the applicant is entitled by right to a 50%
reduction in parking that equals 10 total spaces required per rounding
reguirements.



@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road » Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

An important question is whether the proposed zero parking spaces is
the minimum amount necessary. The applicant is not proposing to
increase the building footprint and Staff believes that providing no
parking spaces on site is the minimum necessary as it is not currently
viable to provide any parking where the building occupies
approximately 85% of the entirety of a small parcel. Even if the
structure were to be demolished, due to the small size of the lot, it is
most likely any future use would necessitate a parking variance of some
amount.

4. Will the character of the neighborhood be substantially altered?

Staff is of the opinion that the character of the neighborhood would not
be substantially altered by granting the variance. The building/site has
existed in this manner with no onsite parking for a number of years.
Further, the potential buyers are proposing to remodel and add to the
existing structure to aesthetically fit into the neighborhood as recently
approved by the Landmarks Commission thus enhancing the aesthetic
character. With the close availability of a large public parking area
nearby, the parking characteristics will continue to exist status quo from
the previous use. Staff believes the impact on the public parking lot
may even be lessened by the change of use since cars awaiting repairs
will not be left overnight and the use of the public parking lot will
primarily occur in the non-peak daytime hours.



@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
10101 Montgomery Road * Montgomery, Chio 45242 » (513) 891-2424

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.
T

TED GDEQQQ\. Lake

»
4
=]
y
o
“
-
=
m
m
i

M !
ONTGQME—RY ROAD

SHELLY LANE

&

D 2

Section 151.1201(G) recognizes that the ‘OM’ Old Montgomery District
purpose is “(G) To provide an Old Montgomery District (OM) that
preserves the historic fabric of the downtown area by maintaining retail
and office uses along the primary street frontages, reducing the
parking requirements and allowing for buildings to be located closer to

the street.

5. Would this variance adversely affect the delivery of government
services?

Granting the variance would not have a negative impact on government

services.

6. Did the owner purchase the property with the knowledge of the zoning
restraint?

The potential owners are aware of parking requirements and are
seeking variance approval prior to formalizing a purchase as any use



®

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road « Montgomery, Chio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

other than a non-conforming auto repair would necessitate a parking
variance.

7. Whether special conditions exist as a result of the actions of the owner?

The nature of the proposed reuse and remodeling of the building drives
the need for effective parking for customers. Any use, beyond that of a
non-conforming use, would require a special condition to allow for a
parking variance by the owner. It should be noted that the intent of the
code is to sunset non-conforming uses into conforming uses over time.

8. Whether the owner’s predicament can be feasibly obviated through
some other method?

With no options for parking onsite and no apparent interest to continue
the current non-conformity, the predicament cannot be obviated
through some other method.

9. Would the spirit and intent behind the zoning requirement be observed
and substantial justice done by granting the variance?

Although the number of parking spaces are clearly defined by the Code,
Staff is of the opinion that the spirit and intent of the Zoning Code
would be observed, and substantial justice done by granting the
variance. The Code does recognize in Section 151.3207 that due to the
compact character of the Old Montgomery District, a by right reduction
is permissible in the amount of 50% to accommodate and complement
the character of the Historic District. It further details the rationale that
Planning Commission can additionally reduce parking during
development plan review based on a variety of factors (This remodel
application is not subject to development review). Such factors
consider the availability and accessibility of public parking spaces, the
character of the proposed use with the design of the building to
reinforce the compact main street environment, and the potential
negative impact to the character of the district if the requisite number
of parking spaces is provided.

It should be emphasized that if the use were to be sold and continued
as an auto repair no onsite parking would be required due to the non-
conforming status and the off-site public parking could continue
without any Board or Commission approval.



&

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road + Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

In one respect, the applicant is trying to comply with the spirit of other
Code requirements by remodeling to fit the historic character and
adding on to the building that requires at minimum 2 stories.
Regardless of the 2" floor addition, which would slightly increase the
number of parking spaces required, parking requirements could still not
be met to Code standards onsite.

10. Would granting the variance confer on the applicant any special
privilege that is denied to other properties in this district?

Many uses in the historic downtown have received parking reduction
approval or variances associated with parking reductions. Various past
parking variance reductions have been additionally approved by the
Board of Zoning Appeals:

e Previous variances were approved at 9347 Montgomery Road to
allow 12 less parking spaces than required.

o A variance approved at 9770 Montgomery Road to allow 14 less
parking spaces (78 Required).

e A variance approved at 9572 Montgomery Road to allow for what
appears to be 4 less parking spaces.

e A variance approved at 9810 Montgomery Road to allow a
reduction of 3 spaces.

e A variance approved at 9573 Montgomery Road to allow a
reduction of 3 spaces.

While the request to reduce the number of spaces provided to zero is
unigue, granting a parking reduction variance would not grant any
special exceptions regarding use.

Staff Comments

The applicant is proposing to significantly rehabilitate and refresh an existing
building on a lot that was most recently utilized as a non-conforming auto
repair facility at 9393 Shelly Lane. The proposed structure is evolving from a
non-descript block design into an enhanced office/retail building that has



&

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. 10101 Montgomery Road * Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « (513) 891-2424

the feel of a modern farmhouse design that will serve to augment the
historic district. They are asking for approval for this application to meet a
deadline at the end of May regarding an option to purchase.

The Zoning Code recognizes the smaller and more compact nature of the
district and that circumstances may warrant a parking reduction, even
allowing a 50% reduction in parking by right. This site is unigue to
downtown due to the small size of the parcel in comparison to the size of
the structure combined with a close proximity to a large public parking
area where approximately 222 parking spaces exist.

Staff believes that the remodeling proposal is very well designed to be
complementary to the historic district and that the request is essentially
mirroring the current status quo of the former Don’s Auto that utilized parking
in the public area.

Granting the variances to allow for O parking spaces to be permitted at 9393
Shelly Lane may be justified by criteria #1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, & 10. Should the
Board grant the variance, Staff would recommend the following condition:

e To allow for future flexibility, if the building is used for retail in its’
entirety or a similar use with a parking requirement of 4 spaces per
1,000 square feet, zero on-site parking spaces would be required.
However, if a more intense use is proposed in the structure, additional
consideration and approvals would be required, as necessary.



Eric Hines
7813 Remington Road

Montgomery, OH 45242

Mike Wentz
7813 Ted Gregory Lane, Suite C

Montgomery, OH 45232

May 7, 2024

Re: Application Requirements for a dimensional variance
Dear Board of Zoning Appeals Members,

We are requesting a variance to permit the future tenants of 9393 Shelly Lane (Eric Hines, The
Studio; Mike Wentz, WentzDesign) to proceed with a “no parking” variance and utilize city public
parking to accommodate workers/customers. The Studio will be my wife’s art gallery and also
provide classes and workshops for clients. WentzDesign will continue to operate as an
architectural design firm. Finally, our middle parcel will provide space for events.

The current owners are James Tucker and David Shannon and it is our plan to take ownership May
31%if all goes according to plan, but it is possible that this may spill over into June. We currently
have access to the building, and we are fine providing access to the property as needed by the city.

We feel very good that the close and available city parking will be more than adequate to
accommodate our workers and clients given the types of businesses we intend to operate, and we
appreciate the city’s review of our request. Attached you will find our signed contract for purchase,
detailed plans for the building and your requested application form.

Respectfully, f "

=
Ecluz) —THU|

Eric Hines and Mike Wentz




¢

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.
Consideration for Approval of Dimensional Variances

The following criteria will be used, along with other testimony provided at the
public hearing to determine whether a practical difficulty exists that warrants a
variance from the Zoning Code. Applicants should be prepared to respond to
these issues.

1. Whether special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the
land or structure and which are not applicable to other lands or structures in
the same zoning district. Examples are narrowness, shallowness or steepness
of the lot, or adjacency to non-conforming uses.

We a}’_]'[@ﬂﬂ '{’U igr”-«.‘jpr’{/c ‘fh—f 0{,.45,/ 74‘-,5,7;/,!.“3; ot ‘f‘hf_ /Jo,'/;,l';,

Add = Cirpenl)y, Sal.s p il W MJ?) F P | a of e Jot Jeaq 0’1”67
ne placer 4o pa, k. | - ’
2. Will the property yield a reasonable rate of return if the variance is not
granted?

We heleve dhese s €4 /(:ri{-’»{ fqﬁ/bff—!, Acefiqg +o Gg,n_ﬂa:;)
Obw _pUC nellr( J

3. Is the variance substantial? Is it the minimum necessary?

Wt gee f‘ffl,wrﬁn?; b Virlpnie S Ne Lar beng

4. Will the character of the neighborhood be substantially altered?

T hisS reguesd will _not alfec Ghe chgro-Ae of Fhe
ne:,r{._/;éc;f/w:ﬂ?,

5. Would this variance adversely affect the delivery of government services?

ThS  pegyeid ,-m//nv vaciance 'l pof- impact Ji.
Ae /.r Ly £ Ic‘ Golktrnmeat e ppilts /
/ J 7 =

10101 Montgomery Road « Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « P: 513.89’1;._2424 » F: 513.891.2498 - www.montgomeryohio.org




10.

o

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.

Did the owner purchase the property with the knowledge of the zoning
restraint?

_/A/e Ntre. Dhpde. gieore ol Fhe Aze d Lo & varlonce ’K)ra",.,

e ’ﬂ{/ﬂ bhgCe
Whether special conditions exist as a result of the actions of the owner?

foe Rﬂéc?&f Cond FlenS evld o a  refl b of Hhe cwaer

Whether the owner's predicament can be feasibly obviated through some
other method?

There J ne e f+ae nfad’ Cang e+ A Moo Chnev <q /ol;.g

4 ,/}ul»/i‘r /Jc:-.rfuqa. ‘:Q/ givei febl+

Would the spirit and intent behind the zoning requirement be observed and
substantial justice done by granting the variance?

in /"4b of Fle })u/ﬂ/ r4 -facf/}.wq/’ arif m(kr( Srgle pa /'e:/i“é)f_

Fiat fde’/w?"? Gl g f“b{L ﬁLh" ﬂﬂu’ f—na Sinte redtca, FHhe

bui&gil? fa«/ﬂf’)f" i ld At 412,0/6#7" f‘,t__ ﬂku cied /55—51'!'{"/‘}'

Would granting the variance confer on the applicant any special privilege
that is denied to other properties in this district?

1 bef e v th ecs hove beco previde d Sinifae varianes £,
act emydate  pn zu«- boifdlngg find P L'n;, Cénéﬁ’lfft"( e Fle

Higde - c B rhf-c-;‘




$Z0Z ‘£ ddY

uBisapziuan e

ANV ATI3HS €6€6

oIpPNag Ay T

3OS OL LON

HOTO0 HOOO IOVHYD HALYI TIVHS HOT00 MOGNIM TION

(1SY3) ONIYIANIH HOoINILX3

3OS 0L LON

ONILSIX3

20

OIS QAN JaAs WOLSND AvHaHNND
WL KTEYH HOLYW OL 311 S0}
5% D0 334400 SSMSMS NI SRS
(AVHO HHVQWNIOTA) 881 - DH
TrOSHYHI TTVONIN MS - OALNIV OB ONILSIX
MWD HILYIW OL - (3L1HA 440}
5¥ 30 334300 ST MS THYOR ¥ WRLL IauvH DNIGIS
WOV HO WOSHYHD O 1300 AV1dO2 - SSVID | 0D MOONIW ¥ 8000 3V SHOCA DVHVD
HOVTE U0 THODUVHD DOOM - Y12 WININNTY. wT13d HOOO LNOWd
HIVTE HO WOOHVHD SSVTOHIEI - ALINIENT NindwN SMOONM
A0 INVHBNIW HITEMY QgL | (37EIS1A LON ) SNIKOOY
SNIDYAS .51 "TWLIW
AVHE WNIIIW | WYIS SMIGNYLS 1V14 300D r2 anL 13701510 DNIZOOY
000 EEINS HIHLIVINNTN [=11]




PZ0Z €T sV

ubisapzjuan e

ANV ATI3HS €6€6

31v0S 0L LON

N, i,

< | L

HOIOD HOOU FOVHYD HOLYW TTVHS HOTOD MOONM LON

Y12 QAN EUs WOLSND TrEqUYNg
WRIL KIHYH HOLYW OL (LMW J4a}
5% 50 334400 5SS MS D SHULSTXE
LAVHD XUYQWNIAZAD 991 - OH
THODUYHO TIVONIN MS - DaLNIYd HORIG ONLLSDEI
IO HOLYW OL - (3LIHM 330}
SF DO 34400 SEWS WS QYO ¥ L 1OMYH ONIDIS
HOVE HO WODHYHD 06 TIOON AVIHOD - S5VTD | COMOONIM ¥ HO0A 3v SHOOO FOVHYED
HOVIA MO WODHVHD ACOM - Y10 WNNINNTY yTad H0OO LNOHH
HOWTE B0 TWOOUYHD SS¥I9UIAN - ALNI4N] NIAYYA SMCONIM
AvED SNVHININ H3sENY Q8L | (3TMISIALON) D100
DHIOVAS .51 TVLIW
Avud Wi Iw W35 DNIONVLS 1¥14 39NY¥9 12 aal (3791510 SNIS00H
HOWD 3L HIUMLIVAONYH way

ubisapzyuann

(M3INYO0D 1SYI HLNOS) ONIMIANTY HOI™3LX3

37vOS OL LON



f— — —r
# &k I,..w._. _ — —
5 u _ A
e A
4 .
| "
H > HVAC TORAGE
_" B Gone mﬂ HVAC _ VI
‘“ 5 I N ,.Iq —
—”/ ﬂﬂmﬂmzanﬂ ; UP _
“ ENCLOSURE ” — — _
: ; , — £ | ST M sperminssesmee Ml T
! I
G , y _
| | | D
2 —
8 | BAY 1=040SF - i ™
g : BAY2=7128F || ¥ ¢ Ik P
_ | 1ocles o H BAY3=1221SF ¢ o
o o ! W/ BEAMS BELOW 16"+- — e i . o
. B| |#====msmrs = = | NoBEAMs IMI b (@)
_ L S _m_ el B L | R, ST | b
. og bl T I ‘
1 | | o
_ ] ] ! ! ! —¥ BAY 3 _
| “ “ 5" GONC. SLAB i =
_H u I 1 | . 4 . w
” " " ' i
— 16' X §-6" GLASS OVERHEAD DOOR ” LW..Tmrnnnrbmm OVERHEAD UD_OE
- ..1‘ = e L -
e = wo Ly P wiez wevsrouosmsoeoreem || |
] ; T T T T | FIRST FLOOR
o ekl L Mmoo | : BAY 1-940 SF
EXISTING PAVING. b i : : BAY 2 -712 SF
/ 8 | ,, |« BAY 3- 1,221 SF
] ] -
i \ SECOND FLOOR
E i | BAY 1-940SF  BAY 1 TOTAL = 1,880 SF
iy - . JEEEIOUS ORREIN0N | | BAY2 -308SF  BAY 2 TOTAL = 1,020 SF
1 L il =
e e, W = BAY3-617SF  BAY 3TOTAL=1,881SF

248"

TOTAL BUILDING = 4,781 SF

SITE/FIRST FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1/8"= 10"

wentzdesign

APRIL 23, 2024



yi EXISTING SECOND FLOOR SECOMND FLOOR ADDITION - Y
§ v o
R T T e T TR T T e e T e i o o S T e ] WINDOWS THIS WALL WILL NEED TO BE FIRE RATED PER 0BG L
! ﬂ S — — —
m . JAN e i i
! gore. || ) unisex | H
. 4 OFFICE OR , e 7 — m S
W CONF. | I = OPEN TO BELOW &
1 - i —— o
W 5 : - 2 (4P
| 1 J B \ . K & (@)
” B %BAY2=308SF \_& 3
| I — 1 — 2 !
T u 2
o " ™ sr D
1 1T | T
! EX6 “ BAY 3 =660 SF ¥
| — | 5
1 “ m
i 55 ! H UNDER g
i H £
! TG ! BAY 1 =940 SF ROOF W OFFICE 2
i ——— 4 mmmmmm o £ £
1
m | U oareee | DECK =351 SF Z
i PODS i ! I PODT e e —— ’ S
“ Fx6 ! | &xe 1 P
!
L O 1 - ,V OPEN DECK
m | _ " s
i I | PoDB |
! ! | wxs ! O
1 ! ! T
! g L. e e S L — i
i 8 |
! i
e 4

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1/8"=1.0"

DECK =521 SF

wentzdesign

APRIL 23, 2024



1000

)

100"

il
1l

— =l

|

EXISTING EAST ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/8"=1'0"

SIGNAGE: & X 7 OVERALL
PAMNEL SIZE WITH STAINLESS
INDIVIDUAL RAISED LETTERS.
KO LIGHTING

STANDING SEAM
METAL ROCF

NEW SECOMD
\EbOm mm,\OZD\\

BEYOND, FINAL DESIGN HARDI-PANEL

>_,:;_z:§m:>mum>_ﬁ zms.,mmoozc
ﬂDmeDﬂDmnx I.DOIEm{DZD,
TBD WITH 1X4 TRIM

\

9393 SHELLY LANE

ALUMINUM CLAD WOOD
WINDOW WITH SDL,
PELLA OR EQUAL. TYP
ALL NEWWINDOWS

I

J

i

/

55

[~
ol

PER BAY

i/

/
/
7

|
! |

¥

35
N
&

#

LGHTING, () A
| W_z_mmmﬁ "#m_ﬂ_m_

0

1

1l

TE
i

Ed

The Studic

| ~——CARRIAGE WALL
LIGHT - BLACK,
SEE EXAMPLE

\

\

.__l DOWNLIGHTING IN

_F.mx_m‘-“zn CMU, /I

EXISTING EAVE ﬁrm»:mr%%ﬂ»@m PAINT
DOOR
PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION

SCALE: 1787 = 107

NEW ENTRY mlkzmcgqmu

DOGR, PELLA GLASS GARAGE
ALUMINUM CLAD DCOR

/ln_pmw_»mm WALL INSULATED
LIGHT - BLACK, GLASS GARAGE
SEE EXAMPLE DOQR

/u.EnquE. AND

REPAIR EXISTING
BRICK AS REQ'D,
PAINT

SIGMAGE: 7' X 2 OVERALL
PANEL WITH FLUSH LETTERS,

By ..
BACK LIT, SEE EXAMPLE wen ’m&@m_ﬂﬂ

APRIL 23, 2024



76"

E- O gape

. | ! : ]

EXISTING SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 158" = 1°.07

9393 SHELLY LANE

STANDING SEAM METAL
RCOF

NEW ALUMINUM CLAD
WOOD WINDOWS

100

X6 DECORATIVE
BRACKET, AZEK OR
HARDI TRIM

3 7 _ _ 7 _ _ 7 _ _ /_vlllz.pxn_ PAMEL (SMOOTH)
WITH 1X TRIM

=
|

) T

[~ ADD WOOD TRIM ABOVE

“NEW' FULL LITE ENTRY

DOOR

\

|

.
)

f flnlinl NEW ENTRY DOOR,
PELLA ALUMINUM ELAD

Ve =t L I

EXISTING DOOR, VERIFY l\ /D_Z“Fr W MATCHING & TALL CEDAR FENCE r.QZIZmE INSULATED AWN|NG STYLE
INSULATED, REPLACE IF CMU, PAINTED TRASH CAN ENCLOSURE WINDOWS

PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 187 =1 4r

ventzdesign

APRIL 232024



EXISTING WINDOW TO
EXISTING GLASS BLOCK Nxm?—)_z
WINDOW
s
EXISTING
EXHAUST FAN
EXISTING WOOD FENGE L
SCREENING E
COMPREES0OR 1
I I
/ [l
/ —
L
EXISTING WEST ELEVATION
SCALE. 18 = "7
HARDI-FANEL AND TRIM, EXISTING WINDOW TO
SEE EXAMPLE REMAIN

il
i

TT

X

PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION

SCALE: \/&™ = 1'-0"

%

EXISTING EXHAUST
FAN TO BE REMOVED

9393 SHELLY LANE

e wentzdesign

APRIL 23, 2024



EXISTING NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE: 118" =100

1

= = 1T

E

PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE: /8" = 1.0

9393 SHELLY LANE

9 wentzdesign

APRIL 23, 2024



EXTERIOR MATERIALS
ITEM MANUFACTURER TYPE COLOR
ROOFING (VISIBLE} Teo 24 GAUGE FLAT STANDING SEAM | MEDIUM CRAY
METAL, 16" SPACING
ROOFING (NOT VISIBLE) | TED RUBBER MEMBRANE GRAY
WINDOWS MARVIN INFINITY - FIBERGLASS CHARCOAL OR BLACK
FRONT DOCR PELLA ALUMINUM CLAD - WOCD CHARCOAL OR BLACK
GARAGE DOORS AE DOOR & WNDOWCO | GLASS - COPLAY MODEL 904 CHARCOAL OR BLACK
SIDING HARDH TRIM & BOARD SWSWSS COFFEE OC 45
(CFF WHITE) - TO MATGH CMU
EXISTING BRICK . - PAINTED - SW KENDALL CHARCOAL
HC - 168 (MECIUMDARK GRAY)
EXISTING CMU - % SWSVMSS COFFEE (C 45
(GFF WHITE) TO MATCH HARDI TRIM
SW SWISS COFFEE OC 45 SW KENDALL CHARCOAL HC - 166 GUARDRAL cUsToM seeL PANTED BLACK

REF.RENDERING FOR PLACEMENT REF. RENDERING FOR PLACEMENT NOTE: WINDOW COLOR SHALL MATCH GARAGE DOOR COLOR

9393 SHELLY LANE

RESIVENTIAL D

5 {0 2

B -

"The Studio” LIGHT INSPIRATION LIGHT FIXTURE HARDI MATERIAL (TRIM & BOARD) STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF

T X 2 OVERALL PANEL VATHFLUSH LETTERS, CARFIAGE WALL LIGHT REF, TABLE ABOVE FOR COLOR (5WISS COFFEE) MEDIUM GRAY APPROXIMATE
BACK LT 15" H X 7" WIDE, BLACK

s

. wentzdesign

APRIL 23, 2024



~ U B =

10
11
12
13
14
Is
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

These Board of Zoning Minutes are a draft. They do not represent the official record of proceedings
until formally adopted by the Board of Zoning Appeals.
Formal adoption is noted by signature of the Clerk within the Minutes.

CITY OF MONTGOMERY
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS REGULAR MEETING

CITY HALL - 10101 MONTGOMERY ROAD * MONTGOMERY, OH 45242

February 27, 2024

PRESENT
GUESTS & RESIDENTS STAFF
Melissa Hays, City Planner
Mark Berliant Donnie Richardson '
1036 Arborcreek Lane, 45242 | 10724 Lanyard Drive, 45242 Karen Bouldin, Secretary
ALL BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
Jon Homer Eric T. Roth ga;y Jo Byr'nies,, (.Z‘halrmi‘m
Director of Business 10307 Crestwind Circle, P :; ard White, Vice-Chairman
Development 45242 ade Stewart
Life Enriching Communities Steve Uckotter
(LEC)
Twin Lakes MEMBERS NOT PRESENT
Tom Molloy

6279 Tri-Ridge Blvd., Ste 320

Loveland, OH 45140

The Board of Zoning Appeals convened at 7:00 p.m. and Ms. Hays announced the
Election of Officers.

Election of Officers

Ms. Stewart nominated Ms. Byrnes for Chairman for a period of one (1) year,
beginning February 1, 2024.

Mr. White seconded the motion.

No other nominations were brought to the floor.

Mr. White moved to close nominations. Mr. Uckotter seconded the motion.
The Board unanimously approved the motion to close the nominations.

The Board unanimously approved the motion for Ms. Bymes to be Chairman.

Ms. Stewart nominated Mr. White for Vice-Chairman for a period of one (1) year,
beginning February 1, 2024.

Mr. Uckotter seconded the motion.

There were no other nominations brought to the floor.

Ms. Stewart moved to close the nominations.

Mr, Uckotter seconded the motion.

The Board unanimously approved the motion to close the nominations.

The Board unanimously approved the motion for Mr. White to be Vice Chairman.

Page 1 of 5



30
51
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74

These Board of Zoning Minutes are a drafi. They do not represent the official record of proceedings
until formally adopted by the Board of Zoning Appeals.
Formal adoption is noted by signature of the Clerk within the Minutes.

Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting
February 27, 2024

Chairman Byrnes called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
Roll Call
The roll was called and showed the following responses / attendance:

PRESENT: My, Uckotter, Mr. White, Ms. Stewart, Chairman Byrnes 4)
ABSENT: Mr. Molloy (1)

Pledge of Allegiance
All of those in attendance stood and recited the Pledge of Allegiance.

Chairman Bymes gave a brief explanation of tonight’s proceedings: She stated that tonight the
Board will be conducting one public hearing. A public hearing is a collection of testimony from
City Staff, the applicant, and anyone wishing to comment on the case. All discussions by the
Board of Zoning Appeals and all decisions will take place within the business session of this
meeting, which immediately follows the public hearing. Everyone is welcome to stay for the
business session of the meeting, however, the Board will not take any further public comment
during the portion of the meeting, unless clarification is needed by a Board member.

Chairman Bymnes noted that anyone not agreeing with the Board’s decision has the option of
appealing to Hamilton County Common Pleas Court, under the procedures established by that
court.

She asked all guests to turn off their cell phones.

Chairman Byrnes asked that anyone planning to speak to the Board please stand to be sworn in
(which includes the applicant). Chairman Byrnes swore in everyone planning to speak.

Chairman Byrnes welcomed Mr. Berliant, Mr. Richardson and Mr. Roth, who were attending as
potential Board members.

Guests and Residents
Chairman Byrnes asked if there were any guests or residents who wished to speak about items
that were not on the agenda. There were none.

New Business

A request for a variance from property owner of 10120 Montgomery Road, Twin Lakes, to
allow a temporary sign bearing a message relating to the construction of Trillium at Twin

Lakes, to have a total of 24 square feet, with 5 feet in height. A maximum of 4 square feet,
4 feet in height is permitted, per Schedule 151.3011 of the Montgomery Zoning Code.

Mr. White stated that he was a resident of Twin Lakes but felt that he could be objective about
this application. He asked if the other Board members had any objections. There were none.

Staff Report

Page 2 of 5



75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
&3
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
i
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119

These Board of Zoning Minutes are a drafi. They do not represent the official record of proceedings
until formally adopted by the Board of Zoning Appeals.
Formal adoption is noted by signature of the Clerk within the Minutes.

Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting
February 27, 2024

Ms. Hays reviewed the Staff Report dated February 27, 2024 “Application for Variance: Twin
Lakes”.

She showed drawings on the wide screen for all to see, to provide more understanding of the
Staff Report. She indicated that there had been no calls or emails received regarding this
application.

Ms. Hays asked if the Board had any questions.

Ms. Stewart asked for the square footage of the signs that are currently there. Ms. Hays stated
that they were 2 feet by 2 feet, and they were 2 feet off the ground (making them 4 feet high);
and they adhered to the Code right now. She noted that the applicant would eliminate these signs
and replace them the proposed 1 large sign.

Ms. Hays explained the maximum of 4 square feet, and 4 foot height guideline: You can have a
4 square foot sign, and you can have multiple 4 square foot signs that total up to 25 square feet,
for the combined signs.

Ms. Stewart asked about the proposed signage, how high above the ground would it be?

Ms. Hays stated that it would be 1 foot above the ground and the sign itself would be 4 feet high.
Ms. Hays confirmed, stating that it would be 4 feet x 6 feet. The situation is unique because it is
located in a residential multi-family zoning, and so they have to adhere to the same requirements
as a single family house.

Chairman Bymes asked if the applicant wished to speak.

Jon Homer, Director of Business Development, Life Enriching Communities (LEC),
Twin Lakes, 6279 Tri-Ridge Blvd., Ste 320, Loveland, OH 45140 stated that Ms. Hays
covered the issues well. He stated that their sales process is different than a normal realtor’s
process. This is a high-end development, starting at $1.1 million to $1.3 million for a luxury
condo. They feel that a larger sign speaks more what they are trying to sell.

When they first bought the property and were going to build a memory care center there, they
had a sign very similar to this, for that project; and then some rules had changed, and the project
changed direction.

Ms. Stewart asked where the sign would be located. Mr. Homer stated that they will need to be a
certain amount of feet from the setback; they will meet all of the requirements. He thought they

would put it more in the middle of the site, as opposed to where the smaller signs are now. He
showed members the location on the wide screen.

Mr. White asked when construction might start. Mr. Homer hopes to begin in the spring of
2024. Ms. Hays stated that they have their permits.

There were no more questions for Mr. Homer.

Page 3 of 5



120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
1’58
154
155
156
157
158
139
160
161
162
163
164

These Board of Zoning Minutes are a drafi. They do not represent the official record of proceedings
until formally adopted by the Board of Zoning Appeals.
Formal adoption is noted by signature of the Clerk within the Minutes.
Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting
February 27, 2024

Chairman Byrnes asked if any guests or residents had comments. There were none.

Adjournment
Mr. White moved to close the public hearing.

Mr. Uckotter seconded the motion.
The public hearing adjourned at 7:15p.m.

Chairman Byrnes opened the business session at 7:15p.m.

Business Session

A request for a variance from property owner of 10120 Montgomery Road, Twin Lakes, to
allow a temporary sign bearing a message relating to the construction of Trillium at Twin
Lakes, to have a total of 24 square feet, with 5 feet in height. A maximum of 4 square feet,
4 feet in height is permitted, per Schedule 151.3011 of the Montgomery Zoning Code.

Chairman Byrnes asked for any thoughts from the Board.
Mr. Uckotter felt this sign was entirely appropriate for the site.

Ms. Stewart stated that you cannot read the current signs when you are driving down
Montgomery Road. Mr. Uckotter wasn’t even aware there were signs there.

Mpr. Uckotter moved to approve the request from Twin Lakes, for the property situated at
10120 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242, to allow a temporary sign of 24 square
feet, and 5 feet in height, where a maximum of 4 square feet and 4 feet in height is permitted,
per Schedule 151.3011 of the Montgomery Zoning Code, as described in the City of
Montgomery Staff Report dated February 27, 2024.

This approval is justified by criteria # 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 &10, as outlined in the Montgomery
Codified Ordinance Chapter 150.2010 (d) for granting variances.

Mpy. White seconded the motion.

The roll was called and showed the following vote:

AYE: Ms. Stewart, Mr. Uckotter, Mr. White, Chairman Byrnes (4)
NAY: ()
ABSENT: Mr. Molloy 1)
ABSTAINED: (0)

This motion is approved.

Adjournment
Mr. Uckotter moved to close the business session.

Page 4 of 5



165
166
167
168
169
170
171
132
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192

These Board of Zoning Minutes are a drafi. They do not represent the official record of proceedings

until formally adopted by the Board of Zoning Appeals.

Formal adoption is noted by signature of the Clerk within the Minutes.

Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting
February 27, 2024

Ms. Stewart seconded the motion.
The business session adjourned at 7:18p.m.

Chairman Byrnes opened the public hearing at 7:18p.m.

Other Business
There was no other business to report.

Minutes

Mr. Uckotter moved to approve the minutes of January 23, 2024, as written.
Mr. White seconded the motion.

The Board unanimously approved the minutes.

Adjournment
Mr. Uckotter moved to adjourn. Mr. White seconded the motion.

The meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m.

Karen Bouldin, Clerk Mary Jo Bymes, Chairman

/ksb

Date

Page 5 of 5



